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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The courthouse is centered in parklike grounds occupying the entire block
surrounded by West Pine, West Walnut, South Third and South Fourth Streets.

torian iron fence. From the main entrance between Third and Fourth Streets on{
Pine Street the grounds rise several tiers to the front portico. Located at
the crest of Zion's Hill the building faces north overlooking the city's busi-
mess district and a bend in the St.Croix River. Near the northeast corner of
the block is a statue of an infantryman, a flagpole, and a monument containing
the names of Washington County's service men.. Nearby is a pldiﬁue erected in
1968 by the Minnesota Historical Society giving a brief history of the build-
ing. An on-grade parking area is located at the/tbuthwest corner of the site.
The building is a two-story classic revival

influenfjce especially evident in the round head windows and interior millwork.
It is constructed of local St.Croix Valley sandstone faced with red brick. The
plan of the principal mass of the building is in the form of a Latin cross the
liead of which is the two-tier entrance portico. The portico elevation has at
both levels three round-head brick arches between quoined brick piers. A simi-

lar arch occurs\EE the lower and upper floors of the entrance elements east
brick string cour81ng expres51ng separation of the’ main and second floors, a
band of _projected brick outlining door and window opemings, and a water table
of 1oca1 grey 11mestone at the first floor provide additional decoratlon to
the exterior walls.

The gable roofs rise from an elaborate Corinthian entablature. Characteris-
tic of entablatures of this order, the dentlls are secondary in scale and im-
portance to the great modllllons At the 1ntersect10n of the gable roofs is a

arated by 12 fluted Corinthian columns. The flagpole that once topped the domg
has been removed.
Attached directly to the rear of the main structure are a two-level jail ony
the south and the two-story sheriff's. residence, now used as the sheriff's
offlces, on the southeast These elements are both of the same construction,
design and materials as the main body of the building,having been part of the
original project. Both have hipped rather than gable roofs. A hjipped. roof,one
story structure,also of the same material and matching design was added\later
on the east 81de of the courthouse to house vaults for the Treasurer's and
Register of Deeds' office. It now serves as the county Law Library.

Among the building's most noteworthy features are the handsome English cer-y
amic tiles varying in color,size and pattern in each of the principal rooms. A
Two curved flights of stairs rise at the back of the main bulldlng “from eitheq
side of the central hall to a landing from which a single flight returns direq
ly above that hall to a similar second floor hall, A narrower stairway circles
up from the second floor to an attic storage room and the dome. The stairways

work. Opening from the upper hall are the offices of the Clerk of Court, the
jury room, and the large courtroom. Except for the recent addition of asphalt
tile flooring over the ceramic tile, an acQoustlc tile ceiling, and a modern
‘ury box,the room is essentially unchanged. Orlglnal furnlshlngs including the

tains chairs for tators;,taples for the urt reporter the lawyers
n their clients; anapeﬁe gu gé's bench are sti use§ 8aff S dows w?t fn-

erior square heads open onto the upper floor of the north portlco.

he basemen reached by two curved stairwyays below the main stairways.
E cel ings and granite slab rYogrs that in some areasrgaze

Bordering the block are low walls of grey limestone topped by an ornate Vie- |-

tructure with strong Italiamte

small ribbed dome set on’ a drum with 12 hlgh narrow, round-headed windows sep-
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have the heavy walnut balusters and handrails characteristic of Italianate mill-
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE /

The Washington County Courthouse is significant both as the oldest court-
house still in use in Minnesota,and as one of the State's few remaining
examples of mid-nineteenth century monumental public architecture. By 1866
Washington County had long since outgrown the three room, one story frame
structure on Stillwater's Fourth and Chestnut Streets. The building had
been erected in 1849 and was the first courthouse in Territorial Minnesota

On November 6, 1866, county residents voted funds for the construction of
a new building. A Stillwater lumberman,Socrates Nelson, and Mrs. Elizabeth

M. Churchill sold Block 39 of the original city of Stillwater of the countf

for $5. Augustus F. Knight \>St.Paul's first resident architect and designe
of the LeDuc mansion in Hastin was selected as the architect. Ground wa
broken in ghe spring of 1867,~and the building was completed in the spring
of 1870.VIt is said that the reason for thelong delay in the completing of
the building was the great difficulty in positioning the intricate pattern
of the imported ceramic floor tiles.

Erected at the peak of the St. Croix Valley's prosperity as a major lumber
producing and milling center, this building reflects the civic pride of a

flourishing young Victorian city. Few of the courthouses built later within

the state have so successfully expressed the dignity expected of a governm
tal building; had the benefit of such a dramatic site; nor equalléd the
quality of its excellent design.
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Minnesota's Major Historic Sites - A Guide, June Drenning Holmquist and Jean

1888. p. 355-56 and 408.

Brookins. Minnesota Historical Society, St.Paul, 1963. p. 52.

Fifty Years in the Northwest, W.H.C. Folsom, Pioneer Press Co., St. Paul,

History of Washington County and the St. Croix Valley, ed. George E. Warner

p. 329 and 530.

and Charles M. Foote, North Star Publishing Go., Minneapolis; 188%,
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